
 

ARIZONA STATE SENATE 

46TH LEGISLATURE 
FIRST REGULAR SESSION 

 
MINUTES OF COMMITTEE ON 

COMMERCE 
 

DATE:  February 12, 2003 TIME:   9:00 a.m. ROOM: SHR 3 

 
CHAIRMAN: Senator Leff VICE CHAIRMAN: Senator Blendu 

  
ANALYST: Todd Madeksza COMMITTEE  

SECRETARY:   
Nancy L. DeMichele 

ASSISTANT   Brandy Martin 
ANALYST:      
 
INTERN: Sophie Rigollet 

 

ATTENDANCE BILLS 

 

Committee Members Pr Ab Ex Bill Number Disposition 
Senator Allen X   SB 1119   DPA/SE 
Senator Arzberger X   SB 1188   HELD 
Senator Cheuvront X   SB 1193   DPA 
Senator Giffords X   SB 1279 HELD 
Senator Martin X   SB 1280 DP 
Senator Soltero X   SB 1281   HELD 
Senator Tibshraeny X   SB 1289   HELD 
Senator Blendu, Vice Chair X   SB 1305   HELD 
Senator Leff, Chair X   SB 1310   HELD 

 
 

GOVERNOR’S APPOINTMENTS 
 

Name Position Recommendation 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 
 
 
 



  Committee on Commerce 

 2  February 12, 2003 

 
Chairman Leff called the meeting to order at 9:11 a.m., and roll call was taken. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Senator Leff announced, without objection, the minutes of the meeting of February 5, 2003, are 
approved as distributed. 
 
CONSIDERATION OF BILLS 
 
SB 1188 – state liquor board; membership – HELD 
 
SB 1279 – state compensation fund; assets – HELD 
 
SB 1281 – drug testing procedures; workers’ compensation – HELD  
 
SB 1289 – check cashers; day laborers – HELD 
 
SB 1305 – cigarettes; delivery sales – HELD 
 
SB 1310 – tobacco; nonparticipating manufacturers - HELD 
 
Senator Leff announced that only three bills will be heard today:  SB 1193, SB 1280 and SB 1119.   
She said the remaining bills on the agenda will be held and moved to a future agenda.  She stated 
that more work needs to be accomplished on the bills being held. 
 
SB 1193 – nonprofit corporations; electronic mail action – DO PASS AMENDED 
 
Brandy Martin, Commerce Assistant Research Analyst, explained SB 1193 updates the means of 
communication a nonprofit corporation may use by allowing electronic mail to be used for notices and 
actions by written consent that do not require meetings to be held.  She explained a 2-page Leff 
amendment is being offered dated 2/11/03 at 2:25 p.m. reinstates language regarding signatures 
required in actions done by written consent and actions regarding meetings. She noted the 
amendment also defines “signature” to include an electronic signature as defined in the Arizona 
Electronic Transaction Act allowing email to be used for these types of transactions.  Ms. Martin 
explained the amendment also defines electronic mail as an electronic record as defined in the 
Arizona Electronic Transaction Act.  Finally, the amendment further updates non-profit corporation 
statutes by allowing a waiver of notice to be submitted by email.   
 
Senator Arzberger wanted to know what would happen if a notice was sent by email and not 
everyone had access to email or some other problem occurred where the notice would not be 
received.  Ms. Martin clarified that the legislation “allows” email to be used, and does not indicate it is 
mandatory to use the email method. 
 
Senator Leff stated she would like someone from the Arizona Corporation Commission or someone 
else testifying today to respond to that question. 
 
Kenneth Rozen, Executive Consultant for Government Affairs, Arizona Corporation 
Commission (ACC) testified as neutral to SB 1193.  He commented that the ACC has not had an 
opportunity to formally adopt a position on this bill.  However, at a meeting last week the ACC 



  Committee on Commerce 

 3  February 12, 2003 

discussed the advantages of using email as easing the manner in which non-profit corporations could 
conduct business.  However, the ACC also discussed a number of concerns regarding the bill’s 
potential affect on the concept of implied versus express consent.  He said the Commissioners 
encouraged work on an amendment to clarify the nature of consent, especially with respect to the 
Arizona Electronic Transactions Act.  He indicated the Leff amendment accomplishes that goal, and 
believes the ACC will adopt a position formally in support at its next meeting. 
 
Suzanne Gilstrap, Arizona Society of Association Executives (AZSAE), testified in support of SB 
1193.    She said AZSAE represents not-for-profit organizations.  She commented that the realtors 
brought this issue to AZSAE two years ago after the Arizona Electronic Transactions Act was passed.  
She explained it is particularly important for not-for-profit organizations to have the ability to vote via 
email or other sources in emergency situations.  She noted this is particularly true for realtors who are 
scattered throughout the State.  Ms. Gilstrap said meetings took place with the ACC, and it appears 
the questions of the ACC have been resolved.  She stated that each organization, through its bylaws, 
could decide whether it will use this mechanism because it is permissive and not mandatory. 
 
In response to Senator Arzberger’s question regarding availability of email, Ms. Gilstrap replied a 
mechanism is in place to respond as to whether a notice has been received.  She said she 
recognizes that computer technology is not on the same level as it might be in other urban areas.  
She said in that instance another method would have to be utilized for proper notice and response 
from members.  She said the amendment requires that notice be given, and believes language could 
be added to the bill that notice has been received.  Senator Arzberger stated that with the lack of 
computer technology in the rural areas, she believes some board members would unfortunately be 
left out of the process. 
 
Senator Blendu agreed with Senator Arzberger’s comments.   He said perhaps there should be a 
mandatory requirement for response to ensure the notice had been received and understood.  
Senator Leff commented the law currently states that a response by fax is acceptable, and this bill 
merely adds one more mechanism for notice.  Further discussion took place regarding the pros and 
cons of this measure.  Ms. Gilstrap stated this mechanism will probably only be used when necessary 
and is merely adding a technology to existing law to facilitate notice.   Senator Giffords commented 
that her experiences in serving on various boards, the members are generally accommodating in 
accepting whatever means necessary for noticing members.  She said allowing one more option of 
notice appears to be a good idea.  Ms. Gilstrap stated she will be happy to work with the Committee 
and the ACC to resolve this matter.   
 
Senator Leff announced the individuals who registered their position on the bill (Attachment 
A). 

Senator Blendu moved SB 1193 be returned with a DO PASS recommendation.   
 
Senator Blendu moved the 2-page Leff amendment dated 2/11/03 at 2:25 p.m. be 
ADOPTED (Attachment B).   The motion CARRIED by a voice vote. 

 
Senator Blendu moved SB 1193 be returned with an AS AMENDED, DO PASS 
recommendation.   
 

Senator Arzberger explained her vote.   She stated that she has concerns about the voting by 
electronic mail, and will vote “no.” 
 

The motion CARRIED by a roll call vote of 7-1-1 (Attachment 1). 



  Committee on Commerce 

 4  February 12, 2003 

 
SB 1280 – commercial electronic mail; regulation – DO PASS 
 
Brandy Martin explained SB 1280 regulates the use of unsolicited commercial electronic email or 
UCE.  She said UCE is also known as junk email or spam and pointed out the purposes of the bill.  
She indicated two amendments are being offered: 
• A 9-line Giffords amendment dated 2/11/03 at 2:24 p.m. (Attachment C). 
• A 9-line Giffords amendment dated 2/11/03 at 2:58 p.m. (Attachment D). 
 
Senator Martin, bill sponsor, stated this measure is being introduced by a coalition of six 
Legislators of the Senate and House of Representatives. 
 
Mike Gardner, Microsoft, testified in support of SB 1280.  He stated that spam is becoming a major 
problem.  He said his company handles two billion emails each day and 40% is estimated to be spam 
or unsolicited commercial email.  He noted this volume creates an incredible burden on the servers 
as well as a major nuisance to consumers.  The problem is also causing less interest in using email 
because of the junk spam. He stated this measure was constructed to have a balance for consumers 
and businesses to sell products.  He emphasized that this bill does not violate free speech or the 
interstate clause of the Constitution because the consumer should have the right to say “no” to 
unsolicited email.  He said several courts have ruled that states do have the right to stop spam, fraud, 
and from having an individual’s email box being inundated with unsolicited mail.   
 
Representative Clark, bill sponsor, stated he is present to speak in support of the amendments.  
He explained the two amendments prevent the distribution of an individual’s email address to other 
unsolicited email senders.  He cited an example of how junk mail affects the individual consumer and 
business.   
 
Senator Leff announced the individuals who registered their position on the bill (Attachment 
A). 
 
Philip MacDonnell, Arizona Newspapers Association, testified in opposition to SB 1280.  He 
pointed out his concerns with language in the amendments as well as one word in the bill.  He 
recommended focusing the bill by limiting it to the individual’s electronic mail address.   He suggested 
inserting the word “electronic” on page 2, line 16, of the bill between the words “future” and “mailings.” 
 
Senator Leff stated she prefers that a floor amendment be put together with any suggestions on the 
language.   
 
Senator Martin cited specific proposed changes in the language, and asked Mr. MacDonnell if he 
would be favorable to changing from an opposition to a support position on the bill and amendments if 
those changes were made.  Mr. MacDonnell responded that is correct. 
 
Manny Lerma, Director-Government Relations, Qwest Communications, stated he would also 
move from an opposition to a support position if the proposed changes are addressed. 
 
Eleanor Eisenberg, Arizona Civil Liberties Union (ACLU), testified in opposition to SB 1280.  She 
stated there are substantial problems with the bill, and cited her concerns regarding free speech and 
certain language in the legislation.  She said she does not have a problem with amending the fraud 
provisions to include electronic mail.  She agreed that spam is a problem, and believes that the bill is 



  Committee on Commerce 

 5  February 12, 2003 

more of an industry protection bill rather than a consumer protection bill.   She stated she has 
concerns with the court proceedings secrecy issue on page 2, line 42.   
 
Senator Martin pointed out the issues mentioned were very carefully considered when putting this 
legislation together and cited some examples.  Ms. Eisenberg cited various court cases and stated 
she is not denying that spam is a problem, but rather that this legislation is not the solution. 
 

Senator Blendu moved SB 1280 be returned with a DO PASS recommendation.   
 

Senator Leff asked Senator Giffords whether she planned to move her amendments.  Senator 
Giffords stated she will not offer her amendments at this time and instead will agree with the 
suggestion of having a floor amendment introduced as discussed. 
 
Senator Giffords explained her vote.  She believes it is necessary to move forward to protect 
consumers against spam and will vote “aye.” 
 

The motion CARRIED by a roll call vote of 9-0-0 (Attachment 2). 
 
SB 1119 – telemarketing; Arizona no call list – DO PASS AMENDED/STRIKE EVERYTHING 
 
Todd Madeksza, Commerce Research Analyst, described the 13-page Leff strike-everything 
amendment dated 2/7/03 at 1:45 p.m.  He indicated that the fiscal impact to the State general fund is 
indiscernible at this time. 
 
Senator Bee, bill sponsor, stated this is the same legislation that passed unanimously out of the 
Senate last year and received 37 votes in the House of Representatives.  He indicated with the 
exception of some small changes, the major part of the legislation remains the same.  He pointed out 
that federal legislation may be forthcoming on this issue and language was included in this measure 
to address the federal legislation.  He said he will be working with all parties to address any concerns.  
In response to Senator Cheuvront, Senator Bee replied there are approximately 22 states that have 
similar legislation.   
 
Lola Dunaway, Silver Haired Legislature, testified in support of SB 1119.  She said she is speaking 
from the standpoint of the consumer, particularly the elderly.  She commented that telemarketing is 
an intrusion in the life of citizens and an invasion of privacy.  She emphasized that this legislation has 
nothing to do with freedom of speech.  She said this legislation is necessary now to eliminate the 
intrusion in people’s lives. 
 
Senator Leff announced the individuals who registered their position on the bill (Attachment 
A). 
 
Manny Lerma, Director-Government Relations, Qwest Communications, testified in opposition of 
SB 1280.  He explained that Qwest does not oppose “no-call lists” legislation.  He outlined his 
concerns regarding the bill and stated it is setting up false expectations and will not stop most of the 
calls because of the loopholes and exemptions.   In response to Senator Allen, Mr. Lerma 
commented on the federal legislation in progress under the rulemaking process.   
 
Senator Allen stated she is not unsympathetic towards Mr. Lerma’s comments regarding small 
businesses, but said many people are interested in having the unwanted calls stopped. 
 



  Committee on Commerce 

 6  February 12, 2003 

Senator Cheurvont stated he agrees with the comments of Senator Allen.  He said he is rarely 
bothered by small businesses, but rather receives calls from other groups who solicit constantly.  He 
emphasized that ignoring to answer the telephone is not the solution because it then affects one’s 
quality of life. 
 
Mara Kelly, lobbyist, MCI World Com, testified in opposition to SB 1119.  She stated that the 
federal legislation regarding the “no call list” is likely to be passed within the next few months or 
weeks.  She explained the federal legislation consists of two parts.  The first part consists of an 
appropriation process.  She provided a copy of H.R. 395, which is the authorization for the Federal 
Trade Commission (FTC) and the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) to work together and 
authorizes the charging of fees.  Ms. Kelly commented that on the basis of the federal legislation 
moving forward, it does not make any sense to adopt a state “no call list” when the implications are 
not fully understood with the federal “no call list.”  She said that if the federal legislation is enacted, 
many clients such as her client will be working through the federal “no call list” and paying at the 
federal level.  If a State “no call list” is established and a large percentage of clients are already 
paying at the federal level, there will be no funding mechanism at the State level.  Ms. Kelly stated 
that is the reason why a Study Committee should be formed to explore this issue further.   
 
Ms. Kelly pointed out that there is already a requirement for someone to be placed on a “no call list” if 
desired through the Direct Marketing Association (DMA).  She said the problem is that there are 
companies that will call regardless of the situation.  She indicated that her client believes that an 
appropriations is needed to deal with more aggressive enforcement instead of more lists.  She said 
the fact that there is no fee cap on the striker is a huge issue for those clients that will be paying the 
major portion.   
 
Philip MacDonnell, Arizona Newspapers Association, testified in opposition to SB 1280.  She said 
he agrees with the comments of Ms. Kelly that it is appropriate to see what transpires with the federal 
legislation.   
 
John Thomas, Arizona Competitive Telecommunications Coalition, testified in opposition to SB 
1119.  He stated he agrees with previous comments of opposition. 
 
Senator Cheuvront asked Ms. Kelly to comment on the composition of the federal “no call list” 
legislation.  Ms. Kelly responded that the actual legislation is very simple.  She said the reason for the 
concept of a State Study Committee would be to provide an opportunity to explore the federal 
legislation to see if there is anything further that should be addressed at the State level.    She said 
the main problem will be in resolving how this will work administratively.  She indicated that this bill 
has undergone tremendous study since last year and no one has a good handle on how much it will 
cost to operate.  She noted the fact that the federal government is appropriating $16 million attests to 
the anticipated cost.   
 
Senator Leff stated that since the federal legislation is only an authorization at this time, it will entail a 
rulemaking process.  She said based on the length of time that it takes for the rulemaking process, 
she feels strongly that something should be done at the State level.    Ms. Kelly responded that the 
federal legislation requires that the FTC and FCC to work together on this issue, which is entirely 
different than in the past. 
 
Lori Fentem, American Teleservices Association (ATA), testified in opposition to SB 1119.  She 
stated that she is also President of the Teleservices Company headquartered in Arizona that provides 
outsource teleservices and customer service on behalf of a major corporation.  She commented that 



  Committee on Commerce 

 7  February 12, 2003 

she believes it is critical that the human factor be taken into consideration before enacting legislation 
on this issue.  She provided background information on ATA.  She said that while she appreciates the 
Committee’s intention to protect consumers from telemarketing fraud, she does not believe that “do 
not call” legislation will accomplish that goal because it is too broad.  She indicated that the ATA’s 
opposition to SB 1119 can be summarized in the following fundamental points: 

• The proposed legislation would duplicate existing federal legislation.  She pointed out that all 
legitimate telemarketers currently subscribe to the DMA’s telephone preference list.   

• Blanket lists as proposed by SB 1119 deprive consumers of choice.   
• The lists do not do what is promised and do not stop all calls. 

 
Ms. Fentem explained the problems relating to the heated competition in the industry from offshore 
companies.  She said that if two lists are in place, her Association would be subject to paying for two 
lists as well as for any potential fines that may occur as a result of any violation of either list.  She 
noted that this legislation will affect thousands of employees in Arizona, who may be in the position of 
not easily finding work elsewhere including minorities, disabled, women, single parents, and other 
groups.  She emphasized that those employees are following the law doing honest labor and they risk 
losing their jobs if legislation is too restrictive. 
 
Senator Leff announced the individuals who registered their position on the bill (Attachment 
A). 
 
Steve Duffy, Attorney, Sprint and State Farm Insurance, testified in opposition to SB 1119.  He 
stated that his clients are opposed to the bill and striker in its current form; however, do not oppose 
the concept of a “no call list.”  He clarified the FTC and FCC timeline on the federal legislation and 
rulemaking process.  Senator Leff asked Mr. Duffy to comment on the industry’s lawsuit.  Mr. Duffy 
responded his understanding is that the DMA has filed a lawsuit with respect to the FTC rules; 
however, he does not have any information.   
 

Senator Blendu moved SB 1119 be returned with a DO PASS recommendation.   
 
Senator Blendu moved the 13-page Leff strike-everything amendment dated 
2/07/03 at 1:45 p.m. be ADOPTED (Attachment E).   The motion CARRIED by a 
voice vote. 

 
Senator Blendu moved SB 1119 be returned with an AS AMENDED, DO PASS 
recommendation.   

 
Senator Blendu explained his vote.  He said it appears there is no balance in this bill, which he would 
like addressed.  He also would like to see a fiscal note going forward.  He said he will vote “aye.” 

 
The motion CARRIED by a roll call vote of 9-0-0 (Attachment 3). 

 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 10:49 a.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Nancy L. DeMichele 
Committee Secretary 
 
(Tapes and attachments on file in the Secretary of the Senate’s Office/Resource Center, Room 115.) 



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Gray Gamma 2.2)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.7
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.1000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /sRGB
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Remove
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
    /Arial-Black
    /Arial-BlackItalic
    /Arial-BoldItalicMT
    /Arial-BoldMT
    /Arial-ItalicMT
    /ArialMT
    /ArialNarrow
    /ArialNarrow-Bold
    /ArialNarrow-BoldItalic
    /ArialNarrow-Italic
    /ArialUnicodeMS
    /CenturyGothic
    /CenturyGothic-Bold
    /CenturyGothic-BoldItalic
    /CenturyGothic-Italic
    /CourierNewPS-BoldItalicMT
    /CourierNewPS-BoldMT
    /CourierNewPS-ItalicMT
    /CourierNewPSMT
    /Georgia
    /Georgia-Bold
    /Georgia-BoldItalic
    /Georgia-Italic
    /Impact
    /LucidaConsole
    /Tahoma
    /Tahoma-Bold
    /TimesNewRomanMT-ExtraBold
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-ItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPSMT
    /Trebuchet-BoldItalic
    /TrebuchetMS
    /TrebuchetMS-Bold
    /TrebuchetMS-Italic
    /Verdana
    /Verdana-Bold
    /Verdana-BoldItalic
    /Verdana-Italic
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 150
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 150
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 150
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 150
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects true
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e55464e1a65876863768467e5770b548c62535370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc666e901a554652d965874ef6768467e5770b548c52175370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /FRA <>
    /ITA (Utilizzare queste impostazioni per creare documenti Adobe PDF adatti per visualizzare e stampare documenti aziendali in modo affidabile. I documenti PDF creati possono essere aperti con Acrobat e Adobe Reader 5.0 e versioni successive.)
    /JPN <>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020be44c988b2c8c2a40020bb38c11cb97c0020c548c815c801c73cb85c0020bcf4ace00020c778c1c4d558b2940020b3700020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken waarmee zakelijke documenten betrouwbaar kunnen worden weergegeven en afgedrukt. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /PTB <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents suitable for reliable viewing and printing of business documents.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


